
 

 

 

Simon Hobbs 
Director of Legal and 
Democratic Services 
County Hall 
Matlock 
Derbyshire 
DE4 3AG 
 
Extension 01629 538328 
Direct Dial 01629 538328 
Ask for Ivan Walters 
 

 
PUBLIC 

 
To:  Members of D2 Joint Committee For Economic Prosperity 
 
 
 

Monday, 9 March 2020 
 
Dear Councillor, 
 
Please attend a meeting of the D2 Joint Committee For Economic 
Prosperity to be held at 10.00 am on Tuesday, 17 March 2020 in 
Committee Room 1, County Hall, Matlock, DE4 3AG, the agenda for 
which is set out below. 
 
Yours faithfully, 

 
Simon Hobbs 
Director of Legal and Democratic Services 
 
A G E N D A 
 
PART I - NON-EXEMPT ITEMS  
 
1.   Apologies for Absence  

 
To receive apologies for absence (if any) 
 
2.   Declarations of Interest  

 
To receive declarations of interest (if any) 
 
3.   Minutes (Pages 1 - 4) 

 

Public Document Pack



 

 

To confirm the non-exempt minutes of the meeting of the Derby and Derbyshire 
Joint Committee for Economic Prosperity held on 10 January 2020 
 
Midlands Engine  
 
4.   Midlands Connect (and Transport for the East Midlands) - verbal update on 

current activities and impact on Local Authorities  
 

5.   HS2 Update:  
 

D2N2  
 
6.   LEP Update - Overview of Progress and LIS Update  

 
D2  
 
7.   Town Deals  

 
8.   Grants Update - Business rate retention pilot and flooding grants  

 
9.   Strategic Planning Framework (Pages 5 - 18) 

 
10.   Any other business  

 
11.   Date of Next Meeting - To be confirmed  

 
12.   Exclusion of the Public  

 
To move “That under Regulation 21 (1)(b) of the Local Authorities (Executive 
Arrangements) (Access to Information) (England)  Regulations 2000, the public be 
excluded from the meeting for the following items of business on the grounds that 
they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in 
Paragraph(s)… of Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Local Government Act 1972” 
 
PART II - EXEMPT ITEMS  
 
13.   Declarations of Interest  

 
To receive declarations of interest (if any) 
 
14.   Minutes (Pages 19 - 22) 

 
To confirm the exempt minutes of the meeting of the Derby and Derbyshire Joint 
Committee for Economic Prosperity held on 10 January 2020 
 
15.   Next Steps for Strategic Alliance and Non Structural Reform including 

priority area for future working : - Tacking Climate Change: Developing Our 
Approach; - Economic Prosperity; - Social Mobility and thriving 



 

 

communiites; - Skills and employment; - Tourism  
 

 



This page is intentionally left blank



 

1 
 

PUBLIC                    Agenda Item 3 
 
MINUTES of a meeting of the D2 JOINT COMMITTEE FOR ECONOMIC 
PROSPERITY held on 10 January 2020 at County Hall, Matlock 
 

PRESENT 
 

Councillor B Lewis 
(in the Chair) 

 

Amber Valley Borough Council 
 
Councillor C Emmas - Williams 
 
Bolsover District Council 
 
Councillor S Fritchley 
 
Chesterfield Borough Council 
 
Councillor P Gilby 
 
Derby City Council 
 
Councillor M Holmes 
  
Derbyshire County Council 
 
Councillor B Lewis  
 

Derbyshire Dales District Council 
 
Councillor G Purdy 
 
Erewash Borough Council 
 
Councillor C Hart 
 
High Peak Borough Council 
 
Councillor A McKeown 
 
North East Derbyshire District 
Council 
 
Not represented 
 
South Derbyshire District Council 
 
Not represented 
 

 
Also in Attendance –  
 
Amber Valley Borough Council – J Townsend. 
Bolsover District Council/North East Derbyshire District Council – D Swaine. 
Chesterfield Borough Council – H Bowen. 
Derbyshire County Council – E Alexander, M Ashworth, J Battye & I Little  
Derbyshire Dales District Council – P Wilson. 
Derby City Council – R North 
Erewash Borough Council – J Jaroszek  
High Peak Borough Council – S Baker 
South Derbyshire District Council – F McArdle 
 

Apologies for absence were submitted on behalf of Richard Horsley (DEP) 
and Councillor M Thacker (North East Derbyshire District Council)   

 

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



 

2 
 

1/20  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST There were no declarations of 
interest. 

2/20  MINUTES RESOLVED that the Minutes of the meeting of the 
Committee held on 22 November 2019 be confirmed as a correct record. 

3/20  UPDATE ON HS2  M Ashworth reported that a Westminster Briefing 
with Lord Kerslake on HS2 was to be held on 14 January 2020 which presented 
an opportunity to lobby local MPs.  It was also reported that there was to be a 
presentation by D2 N2 to the County Council Officer Working Group on HS2 also 
on 14 January to look at collective working, community engagement and to 
develop a consistent approach.  

4/20  CLIMATE CHANGE  It was reported that a climate change 
event was to be held on 3 March at County Hall, Matlock. A District Council Chief 
Executive would be invited to speak at the event. It was also noted that 
Derbyshire Dales District Council and the Peak District National Park Authority 
were hosting an event on 13 January to launch the Climate Change Civic Forum. 
 
5/20  WELL BEING IN THE WORKPLACE I Little, Assistant Director of 
Public Health gave a presentation to the Committee on the links between a 
healthy workforce and economic prosperity. 

It was reported that there was clear evidence to suggest that a good 
working environment was a positive contributor to individual health and well-
being. Similarly, a healthy workforce made good economic sense and a healthy 
population was a critical determinant of economic prosperity. In Derbyshire there 
were a number of healthy workforce schemes including Healthy Workplaces 
Derbyshire, mental Health First Aid Training, Time to Change and Workplace 
health and mental health champions. 

  It was noted that Derby City Council and Derbyshire County Council were 
preparing a co-ordinated ESF bid to support healthy workplace schemes. It was 
agreed that this would be discussed at the Derbyshire Chief Executive’s Group 
prior to being presented to the Committee. Derby City Council were currently 
working on producing average sickness figures across the Council and would be 
happy to share any lessons learnt. 

    RESOLVED to (a) note the presentation; and 

(b) agree to further discussion and collaboration through the Derbyshire 
Chief Executive’s Group to: 

(i)  work with the Chamber to identify and support local businesses to 
offer work opportunities to individuals with health related conditions; 

(ii)  promote the individual and economic benefits of a healthy 
workforce; and  

(iii)  consider the potential role for Derbyshire local authorities for 
employing individuals with health related conditions.   

Page 2



 

3 
 

6/20  EAST MIDLANDS RAIL CONSULTATION  Councillor Lewis 
reported that the Government were set to consult on a reduction in the commuter 
services between Alfreton and Langley Mill and London. The County Council 
were supporting these communities in opposing the proposals and the Cabinet 
Member would be responding on behalf of the Council. 
 

Mike Ashworth agreed to prepare a collective letter of objection to be sent 
on behalf of the Committee. It was also suggested that East Midlands Councils 
might want to comment on the proposal. 
 

RESOLVED to send a collective objection to the proposals on behalf of the 
Committee. 
  
7/20  DATE OF NEXT MEETING The next meeting was scheduled to take 
place on 17 March 2020 at 10.00am at County Hall, Matlock. 
   
8/20   EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC RESOLVED that the public, 
including the press, be excluded from the meeting during consideration of the 
remaining item on the agenda to avoid the disclosure of the kind of exempt 
information detailed in the following summary of proceedings:- 
 
SUMMARY OF PROCEEDINGS CONDUCTED AFTER THE PUBLIC, 
INCLUDING THE PRESS, WERE EXCLUDED FROM THE MEETING 
 
1. To confirm the exempt minutes of the meeting of the Derby and Derbyshire 

Joint Committee for Economic Prosperity held on 22 November 2019. 
 
2. Phase 2 Non-Structural Reform – A New Model of Local Government 

Collaboration for Derbyshire (contains information relating to the Financial 
or Business Affairs of a Particular Person (Including the Authority holding 
that information) 

 

  
 
 

Page 3



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

Agenda Item No. 9 
 

DERBYSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL  
 

D2 JOINT COMMITTEE FOR ECONOMIC PROSPERITY   
 

17 MARCH 2020  
 

PROPOSAL TO DEVELOP A NON-STATUTORY, STRATEGIC 
PLANNING FRAMEWORK FOR DERBY AND DERBYSHIRE 

 

(1) Purpose of Report  
 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to update the D2 Joint Committee on 

progress that has been made by the D2 partners in developing a non-
statutory Strategic Planning Framework for Derbyshire. The Framework 
is being developed in line with, and complementary to, ongoing work by 
D2 partners on climate change and non-structural reform (also being 
considered on this agenda). 

 
1.2 It should be noted that a report on the Strategic Planning Framework 

was presented to the Derbyshire Chief Executives Group on 24th 
January 2020, at which the Group endorsed the presentation of a report 
to the D2 Joint Committee for consideration and endorsement, as set 
out below. 

 
(2) Discussion / Decision Required by the D2 Joint Committee 

 
2.1 The D2 Joint Committee is recommended to agree the following:  

 
i) Progress further joint work by the D2 partners to deliver a non-

statutory Strategic Planning Framework in line with the 
process and key principles set out in this report; 
 

ii) The work to be called the ‘Strategic Planning Framework for 
Derby and Derbyshire’, subject to further consideration and 
agreement by Derby City Council; 

 
iii) Terms of Reference setting out roles and responsibilities for the 

Joint Committee providing strategic oversight and 
governance for the development and delivery of the 
Framework (see Appendix 1). 

 

iv) Undertake initial discussion with N2 planning officers 
regarding the proposed Supplementary Planning 
Document on housing and low carbon – with an early 

Page 5

Agenda Item 9



 

 

report back to the D2 Joint Committee outlining 
implications. 

 
 

(3) Information and Analysis  
 
3.1 On 4th June 2019, the D2 Joint Committee considered a report by 

Derbyshire County Council’s Executive Director for Economy, Transport 
and Environment, setting out a proposal for joint working across all the 
D2 partners to prepare a non-statutory Strategic Planning Framework 
for Derbyshire. The primary justification for preparation of the 
Framework was to address the high priority now placed on strategic 
planning and plan making by Government in the National Planning 
Policy Framework (NPPF). It was also noted this work would help D2 
partners fulfil their obligations under the ‘Duty to Cooperate’ set out in 
NPPF and Localism Act 2011 for joint working on cross boundary 
strategic planning matters.  

 
3.2 The D2 Joint Committee discussed and endorsed a number of 

recommendations that included: 

 The commencement of work to deliver a non-statutory Strategic 
Planning Framework for Derbyshire; 

 Joint discussion between Derby City and Derbyshire County 
Council and the other D2 partners to explore the potential for the 
Framework to be prepared jointly as a Strategic Framework for 
the whole of the D2 area (Derbyshire, Derby City, all the 
Derbyshire District and Boroughs and the Peak District National 
Park Authority);  

 The preparation of a detailed project plan to deliver the 
Framework to be subject to further discussion and endorsement 
by the D2 Joint Committee; and 

 The D2 Joint Committee providing the strategic oversight and 
governance for the development and delivery of the Strategic 
Planning Framework and that terms of reference be developed 
accordingly. 
 

3.3 Following the presentation of the report to the meeting on 4th June 
2019, a further report on the proposal to develop the Strategic Planning 
Framework was presented to Derbyshire County Council’s Cabinet 
Member Meeting for Highways, Transport and Infrastructure on 11th July 
2019. Similar recommendations to those set out above, were endorsed 
by the Cabinet Member.  

 
 
 
  

Page 6



 

 

4 Progress on Strategic Planning Framework 
 
4.1 Since this time, D2 partners have commenced significant work to 

progress the Strategic Planning Framework. 
 
4.2 Between September and November 2019, individual meetings have 

taken place between Derbyshire County Council as the lead authority, 
the City, district and borough councils and PDNPA to discuss the 
Framework in more detail. All meetings were attended by the Planning 
Policy Managers (or nominated substitutes) and discussions explored 
the following matters: 
 

 the principle of whether the Framework could be prepared jointly by 
all the D2 partners;  

 key principles of the process, format and coverage of the 
Framework; 

 the staff and financial resources that would be likely to be 
necessary; 

 evidence and studies that would be likely to be required to support 
preparation of the Framework;  

 discussions on a draft project plan setting out details of the work 
programme, timescales and key milestones for delivering the 
Framework;  

 each partner authority’s Committee / Cabinet sign off process – 

timescales for meetings and lead-in time for reports; 

 preparation of documentation to support the process; 

 the need for a Statement of Common Ground to be drafted by the 
partner authorities to underpin development of the Framework; 
and 

 each partner’s initial thinking on what are likely to be the key issues, 
objectives and priorities in their areas over the period 2020 to 2050, 
that would form the basis of the Framework.  

 
4.3 In addition, the Framework has been discussed through existing 

meetings of planning policy officers, heads of development 
management, heads of Planning Services and the Planning Information 
Monitoring Officer Group. A web-based, information sharing portal has 
been developed by the County Council to support this work and will go 
live shortly. 
 

4.4 Discussions have also taken place with Derbyshire County Council’s 
key service areas (including climate change, economic development, 
conservation and design, infrastructure, flood risk, public health and 
minerals and waste) to discuss a range of strategic issues that are 
proposed to be included in the Framework. 

Page 7



 

 

 
4.5 There has been unanimous support in principle from all the D2 partners 

to work jointly and collaboratively to prepare the Framework on a non-
statutory basis. In particular, it has been agreed by the partners that 
‘tackling climate change’ should be a central theme, linking to all related 
Topic Chapters.  
 

4.6 Specifically, discussions have taken place between Derbyshire County 
Council and Derby City Council to explore the potential scope of the 
Strategic Planning Framework as a D2-wide document; it was agreed 
that this should be taken forward for further consideration by the City 
Council with its elected members. Discussions with Erewash Borough 
Council (EBC) have confirmed that together with the other greater 
Nottingham authorities (Broxtowe, Gedling, Nottingham City and 
Rushcliffe), a review of aligned Core Strategies/ Local Plans, including 
preparation of a ‘Strategic Growth Plan’ with a time horizon of 2050 is 
being undertaken. Erewash BC has indicated, therefore, that it wishes 
to keep an open mind on whether to participate in the preparation of the 
Strategic Planning Framework for Derbyshire, particularly given the 
potential resource implications of simultaneously participating in both 
the preparation of the Framework and taking forward the review of the 
aligned Core Strategies / Local Plans with the Greater Nottingham 
authorities. However, it should be noted that the Duty to Cooperate will 
still need to be fulfilled by all parties in the preparation of both the 
Growth Plan and the SPF 

 
4.7 A key issue highlighted in the partner discussions has been the 

potential staff resources that would be necessary to progress the 
Framework, particularly as a number of the partners have recently 
embarked upon, or are shortly to embark upon, reviews of their Local 
Plans.  
 

4.8 In terms of evidence and supporting studies, D2 partners consider that 
the Framework should be underpinned by a range of strategic evidence 
and studies as set out below: 

 Demographic Projections; 

 Economic Forecasts; 

 Strategic Infrastructure / Transport Study; 

 Growth Opportunities / Constraints Study; 

 Common Methodology for Undertaking Green Belt Reviews; 

 Housing Market Areas Study; 

 Strategic Flood Risk Assessment; 

 Gypsy and Traveller Accommodation Assessment (already 
commissioned by partners) 

 Landscape and Green Infrastructure Studies 

Page 8



 

 

 Sustainability Appraisal (SA) and Habitats Regulation 
Assessment (HRA). 

 
4.9 A number of the partner authorities have highlighted the potential cost 

benefits in joint commissioning evidence that would inform preparation 
of both the Strategic Framework and Local Plan Reviews; this activity is 
likely to be the main financial cost of delivering the Framework. 
Previous discussions with the D2 Chief Executives had identified 
potential use of future Planning Delivery Fund to support this work; to 
date, this has not been forthcoming from Government but underspend 
in the business rate pilot may provide a suitable alternative source of 
funding (see item 8 of the agenda). 
 

4.10 An initial draft project plan has been developed setting out a work 
programme, timescales and key milestones for delivering the 
Framework, taking account of the need for political sign-off processes 
and procedures (Full Council, Committees, Sub-Committees, Cabinets 
etc.) that have been identified by all the partner authorities.  
 

4.11 The project plan sets out the key milestones in developing the 
Framework and includes the following:  

 Emerging Themes document (based on the D2 partner discussions 
on initial thinking on issues, objectives and priorities); 

 Drafting of a range of Topic Papers, setting out relevant key 
international, national and sub-national planning policy and 
legislation; national, regional and local strategies; and strategic and 
local evidence and studies; 

 Drafting of an Issues, Objectives and Priorities consultation 
document; 

 Production of a Draft Strategic Planning Framework consultation 
document; 

 Sustainability Appraisal (SA) Scoping Report and Draft SA; and 
Habitats Regulation Assessment (HRA); 

 Final Strategic Planning Framework. 

 Final SA and HRA. 
 
4.11 Local planning authorities are required to demonstrate they have met 

their Duty to Co-operate responsibilities through effective and ongoing 
joint work on strategic planning matters. This includes entering into one 
or more Statements of Common Ground that document the cross-
boundary matters and enable cooperation to address these matters. 
The D2 partners consider that a Strategic Statement of Common 
Ground should be drafted that would underpin preparation of the 
Framework, setting out key roles and responsibilities, cross boundary 
issues, objectives and priorities that would be incorporated in the 
Framework. Accordingly, work to draft a Statement of Common Ground 

Page 9



 

 

has commenced and will be subject to a further report to the D2 Joint 
Committee in due course for its consideration and endorsement. 

 
4.12 Initial discussions with the partners has focussed on identifying the key 

strategic issues for Derbyshire over the next 30 years up to 2050. This 
includes: 

 Housing (key growth sites, land supply, affordable housing, 

Gypsies and Travellers); 

 Economy / Regeneration (key growth sites, land supply, 

town/district centres, tourism / leisure, good / clean growth); 

 Infrastructure: road, rail, airports, schools, waste, digital, utilities; 

 Environment / Climate Change: 

o Green Belt / safeguarded land 

o Green / blue infrastructure 

o Landscape / landscape character  

o Ecology 

o Heritage 

o Flood risk 

o Air quality 

 Public Health and Adult Care 

 Minerals and Waste 

 

4.13 Within the context of tackling climate change and low/ net nil carbon 

development, these issues will inevitably need to include 

considerations on matters such as modern methods of construction 

for housing, sustainable energy supplies within communities, 

employment sites v ‘workplace/ workspace’ demands, digital 

infrastructure, low carbon infrastructure (e.g. electric vehicle 

charging), carbon capture and flood defences. 

 

4.14 The range of topics outlined will be used to develop an Emerging 

Themes document early in the process that will be reported to the D2 

Joint Committee in due course. 

 
4.15 Furthermore, at its meeting in January 2020, the D2N2 Joint Leaders 

Board considered and supported, in principle, a proposal by the 

Leader of Broxtowe to develop a D2N2 Supplementary Planning 

Document in relation to low carbon housing and tackling climate 

change. Development of such a document aligns easily to the D2 

SPF and its preparation would require the Duty to Co-operate to be 

met; this is helpful in ensuring the full engagement of all partners in 

such an important document.  

 

Page 10



 

 

5.0 Governance 

5.1 At its meeting on the 4th June 2019, the D2 Joint Committee agreed 

to assume responsibility for strategic oversight and governance for 

the development and delivery of the Framework and requested that 

terms of reference be developed. Draft Terms have been produced 

jointly by partners, in consultation with Derbyshire County Council’s 

legal services officers to meet this requirement and a copy is 

attached at Appendix 1 to this Report. 

 

(6) Recommendations   
 
6.1 In order for the Framework to be further progressed, a number of 

recommendations are presented to the Joint Committee:  
 

1) Continue to progress, at pace, further joint work by the D2 partners to 
draft a non-statutory Strategic Planning Framework on the basis of the 
key principles and themes set out in this report; 

 
2) The document to be developed as the ‘Strategic Planning Framework 

for Derby and Derbyshire’, subject to final agreement by Derby City 
Council. 
 

3) Approval of the proposed Terms of Reference for the D2 Joint 
Committee set out in Appendix 1 of this report. 
 

4) Undertake initial discussion with N2 planning officers regarding the 
proposed Supplementary Planning Document on housing and low 
carbon – with an early report back to the D2 Joint Committee 
outlining implications. 

 
 

 
 
Report prepared by: David Arnold, Head of Planning, Derbyshire County Council  
 

  

Page 11



 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 

D2 Joint Committee for Economic Prosperity 
 
 

Terms of Reference  
Strategic Planning Framework for Derby  

and Derbyshire 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
March 2020  

Page 12



 

 

D2 Joint Committee for Economic Prosperity 
Strategic Planning Framework for Derby and Derbyshire 

Terms of Reference  
 

1 Purpose of Terms of Reference  

1.1 These Terms of Reference (ToR) have been prepared to set out the roles 
and responsibilities of the D2 Joint Committee for Economic Prosperity 
(hereafter referred to as the D2 Joint Committee) in providing strategic 
oversight and governance for the development and delivery of a non-
statutory strategic planning framework for Derbyshire and Derby City 
(hereafter abbreviated to Derbyshire).   

 
2 Background 
2.1 At its meeting on 4 June 2019, the D2 Joint Committee considered a report 

setting out a proposal for the following authorities to prepare a non-statutory 
strategic planning framework for Derby and Derbyshire: 

 Amber Valley Borough Council 

 Bolsover District Council 

 Chesterfield Borough Council 

 Derby City Council 

 Derbyshire County Council  

 Derbyshire Dales District Council 

 Erewash Borough Council 

 High Peak Borough Council 

 North East Derbyshire District Council 

 Peak District National Park Authority 

 South Derbyshire District Council 
 
2.2 The report referred to recent Government guidance as set out in the 

revision to the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) in July 2018, 
and carried over into the further revised version of the NPPF of February 
2019.  The guidance highlights the importance of a strategic approach by 
local planning authorities in preparing for their statutory development 
plans, particularly working on cross-boundary strategic planning matters 
including collaborative working involving county councils. .  

 
2.3 As, paragraph 24 of the NPPF acknowledges, district/ borough councils 

and county councils (in two tier areas) and national park authorities (in 
respect of their areas) are each subject to a duty under section 33A of the 
Planning and Compensation Act 2004, to cooperate’ with other 
councils/authorities and prescribed bodies and persons in maximising the 
effectiveness with which development plan document preparation so far as 
relating to a strategic matter and other related preparatory and supporting 
activities are undertaken.   

 
2.4 This statutory duty is widely referred and is referred to hereinafter as the 

‘Duty to Cooperate’. The meaning of “strategic matter” in this context is set 
out in subsection (4) of section 33A; it covers broadly any sustainable 
development or use of land that would have an impact that would extend 

Page 13



 

 

across the administrative boundaries between two or more local planning 
authorities.  

 
2.5 Paragraph 25 of the NPPF emphasises that strategic policy makers should 

collaborate to identify the relevant strategic matters they need to address 
in their plans. Paragraph 26 of the NPPF indicates that effective and 
ongoing joint working between strategic policy making authorities is 
integral to the production of a positively prepared and justified strategy. In 
particular, joint working should help to determine where additional 
infrastructure is necessary and whether development needs that cannot be 
met wholly within a particular plan area could be met elsewhere.  

 
2.6 The report included the recommendation of a number of action points in 

respect of the proposal that were subsequently approved by the D2 Joint 
Committee at the meeting on 4 June 2019, including: 

 The commencement of work to develop a non-statutory Strategic 

Planning Framework for Derbyshire; 

 The preparation of a detailed project plan (including governance, 

timescales, evidence, process and consultation arrangements) for 

the Framework – to be subject to further discussion and 

endorsement by the D2 Joint Committee; and 

 The D2 Joint Committee providing the strategic oversight and 

governance for the development and delivery of the Strategic 

Planning Framework. 

 
3 The D2 Joint Committee 
3.1 The D2 Joint Committee comprises leaders appointed by each of the local 

authorities in Derbyshire which is a local planning authority (the D2 partner 
authorities).  Its purpose is: To bring together the City Council, County 
Council and all District and Borough Councils in Derbyshire into a robust, 
formally constituted arrangement to deliver regeneration and economic 
prosperity across the whole geographical county of Derbyshire. It is stated 
within its existing statement of purpose that it “intends to pursue an 
economic growth strategy through a balanced approach, with economic 
social and environmental sustainability at its heart”.  

 
3.2 Each of the D2 partner authorities, for the wellbeing of its area and to 

facilitate the effective future performance of the “Duty to Co-operate”, is 
willing for the D2 Joint Committee to provide so far as it is able the 
strategic oversight and governance required for the development and 
delivery of a non-statutory Strategic Planning Framework for Derbyshire, 
as set out in the report. These Terms of Reference therefore set out 
appropriate terms on which the D2 Joint Committee is expected to carry 
out this role. The Strategic Planning Framework is envisaged to provide a 
focus for cooperation and joint working between the D2 local authorities to 
meet the requirements of the Duty to Cooperate. 

 
3.3 For the avoidance of doubt, the D2 Joint Committee cannot itself exercise 

any of the functions of a planning authority, such as setting development 

Page 14



 

 

plan policy or taking planning decisions, or discharging the Duty to Co-
operate, nor can it amend any decisions made by a planning authority.  

 
3.4 Its recommendations would not be binding on the actions of any of the 

partner authorities.  
 
4 Specific Roles and Responsibilities 
4.1 The D2 Joint Committee will in response to relevant invitations or requests 

made from time to time on behalf of the D2 partner authorities which are 
introduced though its meeting agenda:  

 Provide strategic oversight on behalf of the D2 partner authorities 

for the joint commissioning and preparation of evidence necessary 

to underpin the preparation of the Framework and inform the 

formulation of issues, objectives and priorities; 

 

 Consider and endorse a detailed project plan to be drawn up by the 

County Council on behalf of the D2 partner authorities for preparing 

and delivering the Strategic Planning Framework, to include 

governance, timescales, evidence, process and consultation 

arrangements;  

 

 Consider and endorse documentation to support the preparation of 

the Strategic Planning Framework that will be subject to further 

consideration and agreement by the D2 partners for subsequent 

public and/or stakeholder consultation, including any documents 

produced on behalf of the D2 Partner Authorities to provide : 

 
o Issues, Objectives and Priorities consultation;  

o Draft Strategic Planning Framework consultation;  

o A final version of the Framework for publication on behalf of 

the D2 partner authorities.   

 

 Provide a forum for discussing and seeking to resolve any conflicts 

of approach or opinion amongst the D2 partner authorities regarding 

the preparation of the Framework; 

 

 Recommend any actions to the D2 partners and others insofar as 

this may help the partners to discharge the Duty to Cooperate and 

to reach a consensus where possible on the key strategic trans-

boundary planning considerations  that will inform the Framework; 

 
5 Desired Outcomes 
5.1 The timely and collaborative preparation and delivery by the D2 partner 

authorities of a non-statutory Strategic Planning Framework for Derby and 
Derbyshire setting out strategic objectives and priorities for the D2 area, 
which will fundamentally support the good/ clean growth agenda for the 
city and county and may potentially (but not exclusively) relate to: 

Page 15



 

 

 Housing (including low carbon, affordable housing and Gypsies and 

Travellers); 

 Economic development and regeneration (including employment, 

town centres and retailing, tourism and leisure and good / green 

growth); 

 Infrastructure for transport, schools, waste management, 

telecommunications and utilities; 

 Environment and climate change (including Green Belt, green / blue 

infrastructure, landscape and landscape character, ecology, 

heritage, flood risk, air quality and development of a Trent Valley 

Vision); 

 Minerals and waste; and 

 Health and well-being. 

5.2 The timely commissioning and publication of an evidence base to underpin 
the preparation of the Framework sufficiently to identify and inform key 
strategic issues in the D2 area and cross-boundary issues beyond the D2 
area.  

 
5.3 The publication of Statements of Common Ground on behalf of, and as 

agreed by, the D2 partners.  
 
5.4 The commissioning and publication of a Sustainability Appraisal and 

Habitats Regulation Assessment to inform the development of the 
Framework and ensure that its strategic objectives and priorities promote 

sustainable development by assessing the extent to which the emerging 
Framework, when judged against reasonable alternatives, will help to 
achieve relevant environmental, economic and social objectives. 

 
6 Frequency and Format of Meetings 
6.1 The D2 Joint Committee meets every two months to consider a wide range 

of economic prosperity, infrastructure and regeneration related matters. 
Matters specifically relating to the strategic oversight and governance for 
the development and delivery of the Strategic Planning Framework will be 
considered, as and when necessary, by the D2 Joint Committee as part of 
its regular bi-monthly cycle of meetings.  

 
6.2 Papers relating to the Strategic Planning Framework will be drafted and 

circulated to Committee members prior to the meeting and action notes 
and points of agreement reached will be recorded at each meeting. 
Representatives of other bodies, including consultants, may attend and 
present at the meeting by invitation by the Committee.  

 
7 Secretariat 
7.1 The secretariat for matters relating to the Strategic Planning Framework 

for consideration by the D2 Joint Committee, will be provided by 
Derbyshire County Council.  

  
 

Page 16



 

 

Key Signatories 
  

For and on behalf of Amber Valley 
Borough Council 

Signature 
 
Title 
 

For and on behalf of Bolsover District 
Council 

Signature 
 
Title 
 

For and on behalf of Chesterfield 
Borough Council 

Signature 
 
Title 
 

For and on behalf of Derby City 
Council 

Signature 
 
Title 
 

For and on behalf of Derbyshire 
County Council 

Signature 
 
Title 
 

For and on behalf of Derbyshire Dales 
District Council 
 

Signature 
 
Title 
 

For and on behalf of Erewash 
Borough Council 

Signature 
 
Title 
 

For and on behalf of High Peak 
Borough Council 

Signature 
 
Title 
 

For and on behalf of North East 
Derbyshire District council 

Signature 
 
Title 

For and on behalf of Peak District 
National Park Authority 

Signature 
 
Title 
 

For and on behalf South Derbyshire 
District council 

Signature 
 
Title 
 

  
 

Page 17



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 19

Agenda Item 14
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	9 Strategic Planning Framework
	14 Minutes

